The Board of Trustees of the University of Central Arkansas convened in a called meeting on Tuesday, June 11, 2002, at 3:00 p.m. in Room 109 in the Writing and Speech Building with the following officers and members present, to-wit:

Chair: Mr. Randy Sims
Vice Chair: Mr. Rush Harding
Secretary: Mr. Kelley Erstine

Mr. Rickey Hicks Mr. Scott Roussel Dr. Michael Stanton Mr. Dalda Womack

constituting a quorum of said Board, at which meeting the following business was transacted, towit:

MINUTES

Minutes of the May 10, 2002, Board meeting were unanimously approved as circulated upon motion by Mr. Harding with a second by Mr. Erstine.

ANNOUNCEMENTS/INFORMATION

President Smith reported that the grand opening of College Square, UCA's independent living retirement center, will be held Sunday, June 23, 2002. The ribbon cutting ceremony is scheduled for 1:30 p.m. An open house will be held from 10:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m. President Smith encouraged members of the Board to attend.

Copies of UCA's Technology Symposium 2002 CD were distributed to Board members for their information.

President Smith informed the Board that a series of advertisements congratulating recent award winners will appear in the Arkansas Democrat-Gazette, Log Cabin Democrat, and Arkansas Business. Copies of the first ad, which acknowledges UCA's first Rhodes Scholar, Rhett Martin, were distributed.

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

<u>Litigation</u> - The following litigation report was presented:

Paul Pojman v. University of Central Arkansas, (EEOC-251A1178).

Charging party Paul Pojman, a former faculty member, initiated a charge before the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission alleging a supervisor discriminated against him due to his sex in creating a sexually hostile work environment, and retaliated against him for his involvement in a sexual harassment investigation, in violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended. The university has provided a response denying each and every material allegation of the charge.

<u>University of Central Arkansas v. Simms and Barry</u>, (UDRP #D2002-0316), World Intellectual Property Organization's Arbitration and Mediation Center (WIPO).

On April 02, 2002, the university submitted an arbitration pleading before the World Intellectual Property Organization's Arbitration and Mediation Center in accordance with the Uniform Policy for Domain Name Dispute Resolution due to the improper registration of www.universityofcentralarkansas.com by persons having no affiliation with the university.

It is the university's position that the actions of these individuals abridge the trademark protection afforded the university by federal law. Federal law requires the holder of a trademark to exercise due diligence in protecting the use and/or misuse of its name.

On June 3, 2002, the university was notified by the arbitrator that the domain name (<u>www.universityofcentralarkansas.com</u>) would be transferred to the university absent the initiation of legal action by the registrar within ten (10) business days following receipt of the decision.

<u>Natural Gas Contract</u> - Mr. Jack Gillean, Vice President for University Relations and Interim Vice President for Administration, reported that the university is exploring the possibility of changing the method of procuring natural gas. Mr. Gillean stated that UCA is currently acquiring gas from Reliant Energy Arkla. The change will require the university to enter into three separate contracts to purchase, transport, and deliver gas to campus meters, but will result in less expense for the university. Mr. Gillean and Mr. Lee McQueen, Director of the Physical Plant, responded to questions from Board members.

<u>Budget/Legislative Session</u> - President Smith reported on UCA's budget hearing held yesterday at the Arkansas Department of Higher Education (ADHE). Financial information presented to ADHE by UCA that will be used during the upcoming legislative session was distributed and reviewed. Discussion followed, during which President Smith and Board members voiced their concerns regarding the funding recommendations from ADHE and funding inequities for UCA in general.

In response to a request from Mr. Erstine, President Smith said that he would obtain a copy of ADHE's funding recommendations for UCA and forward to Board members.

Mr. Hicks suggested that Board members formulate a plan and visit with key legislators and others regarding the funding process prior to the upcoming legislative session.

President Smith agreed with Mr. Hicks and stated that members of the administration have already begun working with the local legislative delegation.

<u>Presidential Search</u> - Mr. Robert McCormack, Chair of the Presidential Search Committee, was present to answer any questions Board members had regarding the presidential search.

Mr. Roussel asked if the presidential search process could be accelerated in light of the upcoming legislative session.

Mr. McCormack stated that the search committee would follow any directives from the Board concerning the search process.

ACTION AGENDA.

<u>Cell Tower Lease</u> - For the past several months, the administration has been exploring the possibility of allowing a cell tower to be placed on UCA property in return for lease payments and the grant of an easement. Because of the use of mobile phones in the area of our campus, there exists a pressing need for more capacity to handle the cell traffic.

A Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued and one company responded, Clearshot Communications. They propose placing two towers near the baseball field. The towers will be "stealth" towers designed to look like flag poles. At ground level, the company will require the use of approximately 2,100 square feet of property that will be leased to the company; a utility easement extending from the leased property to the nearest set of cables (along College Avenue) in order to connect to their system; and an access easement extending from the parking lot near the baseball field to the leased property. The lease term will be 20 years. The Company will construct, at its expense, a fence that will be approximately seven feet high to protect equipment that must be housed at the base of the towers.

The administration does not believe that granting a 20-year lease of this property or the easements will have any adverse consequence for the university. Moreover, the lease revenues will be very beneficial to the university during these lean economic times.

The following resolution was unanimously adopted upon motion by Mr. Harding with a second by Mr. Hicks:

"BE IT RESOLVED: THAT THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AUTHORIZES THE ADMINISTRATION TO ENTER INTO A LEASE WITH AND TO GRANT EASEMENTS TO CLEARSHOT COMMUNICATIONS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PLACING TWO CELL TOWERS ON UNIVERSITY PROPERTY.

THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THE LEASE IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

Part of the Northwest One Quarter (NW 1/4) of the Southeast One Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 11, Township 5 North, Range 14 West, Faulkner County Arkansas more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Northeast corner of the Northwest One Quarter (NW 1/4) of the Southeast One Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 11; Thence South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 4.00 Feet to a Point; Thence South 89 38' 43" West a distance of 240.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 291.40 Feet to a Point; Thence continuing South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 67.15 Feet to a Set Iron Pin and being the Point of Beginning; Thence North 89 51' 18" East a distance of 7.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence South 89 51' 18" West a distance of 52.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence North 89 51' 18" East a distance of 10.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence North 89 51' 18" East a distance of 10.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence continuing North 89 51' 18" East a distance of 20.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence continuing North 89 51' 18" East a distance of 15.00 Feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.05 Acres more or less. LESS and EXCEPT all Easements and Rights-of-Way of Record.

THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THE UTILITY EASEMENT IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

Part of the Northwest One Quarter (NW 1/4) of the Southeast One Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 11, Township 5 North, Range 14 West, Faulkner County Arkansas more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Northeast corner of the Northwest One Quarter (NW 1/4) of the Southeast One Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 11; Thence South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 4.00 Feet to a Point; Thence South 89 38' 43" West a distance of 240.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin and being the Point of Beginning; Thence South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 291.40 Feet to a Point; Thence continuing South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 67.15 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence South 89 51' 18" West a distance of 15.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence North 00 08' 42" West a distance of 358.50 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence North 89 38' 43" East a distance of 15.00 Feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.12 Acres more or less. LESS and EXCEPT all Easements and Rights-of-Way of Record.

THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THE ACCESS EASEMENT IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

Part of the Northwest One Quarter (NW 1/4) of the Southeast One Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 11, Township 5 North, Range 14 West, Faulkner County Arkansas more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Northeast corner of the Northwest One Quarter (NW 1/4) of the Southeast One Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 11; Thence South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 4.00 Feet to a Point; Thence South 89 38' 43" West a distance of 240.00 Feet

to a Set Iron Pin; Thence South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 291.40 Feet to a Point; Thence continuing South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 67.15 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence South 89 51' 18" West a distance of 15.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence continuing South 89 51' 18" West a distance of 20.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin and being the Point of Beginning; Thence continuing South 89 51' 18" West a distance of 10.00 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence North 00 08' 42" West a distance of 24.97 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence North 86 19' 50" East a distance of 10.02 Feet to a Set Iron Pin; Thence South 00 08' 42" East a distance of 25.58 Feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.01 Acres more or less. LESS and EXCEPT all Easements and Rights-of-Way of Record."

<u>Parking and Traffic Rules and Regulations (Board Policy No. 421)</u> - Shown below are proposed changes to parking and traffic regulations. These regulations are adopted pursuant to A.C.A. 25-17-307 for the 2002-03 academic year.

No increase in parking fees or fines or other substantial changes are proposed in this agenda item. However, since these regulations were last brought before the Board of Trustees in 1997, the administration believes that it is necessary to submit these numerous, but minor, changes to the Board for approval.

The following resolution was unanimously adopted upon motion by Mr. Harding with a second by Mr. Roussel:

"BE IT RESOLVED: THAT THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES ADOPTS THE FOLLOWING REVISIONS TO BOARD POLICY NO. 421, AND TRAFFIC RULES AND REGULATIONS,' EFFECTIVE AUGUST 15, 2002."

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL ARKANSAS BOARD POLICY

Policy Number: 421

Subject: Traffic and Parking Regulations

Date Adopted: 4/89 Revised: 8/90, 8/91 4/92, 3/93, 5/93, 5/94, 5/95, 5/96,

5/97

I. Administrative Policy

In accordance with A.C.A. 25-17-307, the Board of Trustees of the University of Central Arkansas has established regulations for the operation and parking of motor vehicles on the UCA campus. These regulations apply to all faculty, staff, students, and others utilizing the land and streets owned or controlled by the University of Central Arkansas and are effective beginning August 15, 1997 d2002d. The University Police Department is the jurisdictional law enforcement agency empowered under State statutes to enforce all parking and traffic regulations of the University of Central Arkansas and the State of Arkansas on all campus properties and on alld thosed streets adjacent to campus properties.

- 1. Any appropriately licensed driver choosing to park an automobile on campus may do so, provided a parking permit is obtained and provided the driver understands that the permit neither obligates the university to set aside a space for every vehicle nor allows the driver to violate parking regulations.
- 2. The university reserves the right to restrict the use of an automobile on university property if the owner or driver has abused the privilege of operating a vehicle on campus.
- 3. The university assumes no responsibility for a vehicle or its contents.
- 4. Motorcycles, mopeds and motorbikes are not permitted on campus except in designated parking areas located on the perimeter of the campus. Users must enter and depart the campus at the location nearest these parking areas. No travel through campus is permitted.
- 5. 4. Any motor vehicle parked on property owned or controlled by the university, including metered parking, and under the control of a student, faculty member, or staff member must properly display a valid UCA parking permit.
- 6. 5. Failure to pay fines will result in the blocking of pre-registration or the withholding of transcripts or pay and refund checks.
- 7. 6. A ticketed vehicle continuing in violation may be ticketed again as long as the violation continues. Overtime parking will be ticketed every two hours and all other violations will be ticketed every subsequent day the violation continues.
- 8.7. An illegally parked, but non-ticketed vehicle, is not an indication that the regulation being violated is no longer in effect.
- 9. 8. Any person who is stopped by University Police for a violation of a traffic or parking

regulation is subject to either a university or municipal citation as determined by the issuing officer.

- 10. 9. Occupants of residence halls are requested not to drive to class, the cafeteria, or other campus areas between the hours of 6:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.
- 1110. A traffic ticket or any other communication from a University Police officer is an official university notice. Recipients who do not respond to such a communication face disciplinary or and/or legal action.
- 12 11. The Arkansas Crime Information Center furnishes the University Police Department with information on the owners of vehicles not displaying a permit that receive tickets. These tickets are then issued to the faculty/staff member or student whose last name and home address match those on the listing.
- 13 12. Use of any parking permit acquired through fraudulent, or otherwise improper means, will be considered theft of services from the University of Central Arkansas.

II. University Police Department Traffic and Parking Services Office

The University Police Department is located at the intersection of W.J. Sowder and Marian Ross Streets. As a service to the university community, the The Department's lobby Traffic and communications center Parking Services Office is never closed. Business hours open for payment of traffic fines and purchase of parking permits between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. All registered students may obtain their parking permit at the University Police Department 24 hours a day except for registration and fee payment days. Temporary parking permits and parking and traffic information can also be obtained at the University Police Department 24 hours a day. Communications Center 24 hours a day. As a service to the university community, the Department's lobby and communications center is never closed.

III. Student Parking Permits

- 1. All s Students who park vehicles on campus are required to immediately purchase obtain and display a parking permit. The parking permit consists of two vehicle decals which are registered in the name of the student. The larger decal must be displayed on the driver's side of the rear bumper or the lower left corner of the rear window and the small decal must be displayed on the driver's side, upper or lower corner, of the front windshield. Decals should be applied to a clean, dry surface, and must be permanently affixed to the vehicle through use of the decals' adhesive backing.
- 2. It is a violation for a decal to be taped or otherwise displayed from the vehicle interior by means other than the adhesive backing.
- 3. Students should obtain their parking permit at the University Police Department or such other place that may be designated on registration and university fee payment days.
- 4. Permits are the responsibility of the purchaser and must be removed prior to sale or

transfer of the vehicle. Student permits are not transferable to any other vehicle. Only one current permit shall be displayed on a vehicle. A permit must not be altered or defaced.

- 5. A current permit expires the last day of summer school, or withdrawal by the student, whichever comes first.
- 4. 6. A "Temporary Permit" may be obtained without cost from the University Police Department for any alternate vehicle brought to the campus for a period of one to seven days. The permit is a hanging tag which is assigned to the temporary individual driving the vehicle. The permit must hang on the rearview mirror with the front side of the permit facing the windshield. Temporary permits are available only to students who have obtained a regular parking permit.

V. Faculty and Staff Parking Permits

- 1. All Faculty and staff employees of the university who park vehicles on campus are required to immediately purchase and display a parking permit. Student employees are not eligible for staff parking. The parking permit for all faculty and staff employees is a transferable polyethylene hanging permit registered in the name of the employee.
- 2. Only one hanging permit may be issued to each employee of the university. The permit may should be transferred to any vehicle the employee parks on the campus.
- 3. The permit must hang on the rearview mirror with the front side of the permit facing the windshield. Failure to properly display the hanging permit will result in the issuance of a citation.
- 4. Employees who forget to bring their hanging permit to campus must obtain a one-day temporary parking permit from the University Police Department prior to parking on university property. One-day permits are issued free of charge for employees who possess a regular parking permit.
- 5. Lost hanging permits may be replaced by purchasing a new permit at the full annual fee. Holders of permits are prohibited from selling or otherwise transferring their permit to another faculty/staff member or student.
- 6. The hanging permit must be returned to the University Police Department upon termination of employment with the University of Central Arkansas.
- 7. A temporary staff permit is available to university temporary or extra-help employees whose appointments are for a limited period of time. The fee for a one-month temporary staff permit is \$10.00. The fee paid for monthly temporary permits may not be used to off-et the cost of a regular employee parking permit should the employee's appointment be extended.
- 8. Relatives of faculty or staff members are not eligible for a faculty/staff permit and may not park in faculty/staff parking areas unless they themselves are regular employees of UCA. Each parking permit is valid only for use by the person to whom it is issued. Misuse of a

faculty/staff parking permit may result in loss of parking privileges for both the faculty/staff member and the violator.

VI. Disabled Parking

- 1. Disabled parking spaces are provided for the benefit of physically challenged persons. These spaces are designated by disabled signs and marked stalls. Unauthorized use of disabled spaces may result in fines as well as towing and associated costs.
- 2. Physically challenged persons must obtain a blue disabled permit and must furnish the University Police with proof of issuance of a disabled permit or license plate by the Arkansas Department of Finance and Administration. Such proof shall be the "Disabled Person's Access to Parking Application Form" issued by the state with the special plate or placards.
- 3. Temporary disabled permits will be issued only to persons who have purchased obtained and displayed a regular UCA permit. Upon obvious, visible disability a temporary disabled permit will be issued for a period of 3 5 days. Temporary disabled permits for a longer period of time, not to exceed 30 working days, will be issued only with a letter from a physician stating a need for a disabled permit and the length of time it is needed.

VI. Visitor Parking

- 1. Visitors are welcome and are encouraged to obtain a visitor's permit at the University Police Department prior to parking on campus. These permits will be issued after presentation of a valid driver's license. A visitor who receives a citation for a violation of the UCA parking rules, other than parking in a No Parking area or Disabled space, may bring or mail the citation to the University Police Department and it will be voided. Visitors may not park in a "No Parking" or "Disabled Parking" area. Violation of "No Parking" or Disabled parking statutes will result in a municipal citation with fines set by the Municipal Court. Municipal citations cannot be dismissed by the University and failure to respond to these citations will result in a warrant of arrest issued by the Municipal Court.
- 2. Visitors may park in designated visitor parking lots on campus without first obtaining a visitor parking permit. Visitor parking is provided only for persons who are not registered students or employees of the university. Students or employees parking in visitor parking, whether a student or staff parking permit is or is not displayed, will be subject to citation. Students and Faculty/Staff are not allowed to use a visitors temporary. The temporary will be confiscated if used by an unauthorized individual. Parking privileges may be taken away from those involved.

VII. Meter Parking

Meter parking is designated for short-term, convenience purposes. Holders of all types of UCA permits are required to pay when parking at parking meters. Two hour meter parking is enforced 8:00 AM - 4:30 PM Monday - Friday. Fifteen minute loading/unloading meters are enforced 24 hours a day 7 days a week. A UCA parking permit is required at all meters.

VIII. Motorcycles

Motorcycles, mopeds and motorbikes are not permitted on campus except in designated parking areas located on the perimeter of the campus. Users must enter and depart the campus at the location nearest these parking areas. Motorcycle permits are required to be placed where easily seen.

IX. Bicycles

Persons riding bicycles must obey all rules of the road established for motor vehicles. Bicycles shall be parked in racks provided on campus. Bicycles parked in access ways, on sidewalks, in areas which may obstruct disabled access or in any other improper location will be subject to citation and impoundment. Impounded bicycles may be claimed at the University Police Department after all fines are paid.

XI. Method of Payment

- 1. All parking permits may be purchased obtained at the University Police Department or at specially designated areas during fall, spring and summer registration and fee payment. Cash, check, Visa, MasterCard, and Discover are accepted.
- 2. Payroll deduction is available as a form of permit fee payment for full-time faculty and staff and permanent, part-time employees. The annual fee will be deducted in three equal installments (six installments for employees on bi-monthly payroll) beginning with the September paycheck for all continuing employees. For those employees appointed after the start of the Fall semester, the parking fee will be deducted in installments beginning with the employee's first paycheck. Employees who terminate before the entire annual fee is collected will have the remaining balance deducted from their final paycheck.
- 3. Students may obtain more than one permit if more than one vehicle will be parked on university property by paying the same fee as for the initial decal. a \$40.00 fee for the additional permit at the University Police Department.
- 4. Students may obtain replacement permits at a cost of \$2.00, provided proof of destruction of the original permit is furnished to the University Police Department.
- 6. Faculty and staff members may obtain replacement hanging permits at a cost of \$2.00 if the original permit has been reported stolen to the University Police and an official theft report is filed, or if a damaged permit is turned in at the time the replacement permit is obtained. Hanging permits are a valuable commodity. Lost permits may be replaced by purchasing a new permit at the full annual fee.
- 7. Permits are the responsibility of the purchaser and must be removed prior to sale or transfer of the vehicle or termination of employment. Student permits are not transferable to any other vehicle. Only one current permit shall be displayed on a vehicle. A permit must not be altered or defaced.
- 8. A current permit expires the last day of summer school, or upon the date of termination of the faculty/staff member, or withdrawal by the student, whichever comes first.

9. Relatives of faculty or staff members are not eligible for a faculty/staff permit and may not park in faculty/staff parking areas unless they themselves are regular employees of UCA. Each parking permit is valid only for use by the person to whom it is issued. Misuse of a faculty/staff parking permit may result in loss of parking privileges for both the faculty/staff member and

XI. Permit Fees

Fees for parking permits are as stated below. Fees are subject to change without notice.

Area/TypeYearSummerFaculty/Staff:Yellow Hanging Permit\$51.00\$25.00Monthly Temporary Permit\$10.00\$10.00Student:Purple Adhesive Permit\$40.00\$20.00Resident:Green Adhesive Permit\$40.00\$20.00Institutional:Silver - Faculty/Staff\$51.00\$25.00Silver - Student\$40.00\$20.00Disabled:Blue Hanging Permit - Faculty/Staff\$51.00\$25.00Blue Adhesive Permit -Student\$40.00\$20.00All Motorcycles/Mopeds:Purple Adhesive Permit\$5.00\$5.00

VIII. XII. Parking Area Assignments and Hours

Faculty/Staff Parking - Areas marked "Yellow Area" with yellow signs and yellow lines are reserved for faculty and staff vehicles displaying current yellow hanging permits.

Student Parking - Areas marked "Student Parking" with white lines are reserved for student vehicles displaying current purple UCA decals.

Resident Parking - Areas marked "Resident Parking" with green lines are reserved for student vehicles displaying current green UCA decals. Green decals are available only to students residing in campus residence halls.

UCA Permit Parking - Areas marked "UCA Permit Parking" are reserved for student or faculty/staff vehicles displaying current UCA permits. Disabled Parking - Areas marked for disabled access are reserved for vehicles displaying current blue decals.

Visitor Parking - Areas marked for visitors are reserved for persons who are not employees or students of the university.

Between 4:30 p.m. and 6:30 a.m., Monday through Friday, Yellow Faculty/Staff areas, "Student Parking" areas, and "UCA Permit Parking" areas are interchangeable. (Summer Hours are from 2:30 p.m. to 6:30 a.m.) They are interchangeable all day Saturday and Sunday. Residence hall parking (green spaces), visitor parking, reserved spaces for residence hall directors and, physicians, and disabled spaces, and all other reserved spaces as marked are not interchangeable and are enforced 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

IX. XIII. Driving Regulations

- 1. All traffic and motor vehicle laws of the State of Arkansas are applicable on UCA property and will be enforced by University Police officers. Violation of State traffic and motor vehicle laws may subject the driver to a municipal citation with fines set by the Municipal Court.
- 2. The campus speed limit is fifteen (15) miles per hour, except where conditions indicate a slower speed is necessary.
- 3. One-way street driving regulations are to be observed at all times by all vehicles.

- 4. All STOP signs, YIELD RIGHT-OF-WAY signs, and all other regulatory or directional signs are to be observed.
- 5. Pedestrians in crosswalks shall have the right-of-way.
- 6. It is a violation of traffic regulations to avoid a speed bump.
- 7. It is the driver's responsibility to be able to operate his or her vehicle safely. Anyone who operates a vehicle on university property while under the influence of intoxicating liquor, narcotic drugs, or opiates will be subject to arrest.
- 8. Failure to yield to a University Police vehicle signaling a driver to pull over to stop (via the use of blue lights and/or siren), failure to comply with a University Police officer's direction, or failure to cooperate with a University Police officer while the officer is performing his official duties, will subject the violator to arrest under applicable State statutes.

X. XIV. Parking Regulations

- 1. It is the driver's responsibility to find a legal, marked parking space and to park the entire vehicle within the space's boundary lines. Other improperly parked vehicles in the area shall not constitute an excuse for parking with any part of the vehicle over the line. Severe weather is not a valid reason for violation of parking regulations. If a vehicle experiences mechanical failure, it is the owner/driver's responsibility to have the vehicle removed as soon as available services permit. Parking lots may not be used for vehicle storage.
- 2. All parking spaces are defined by painted lines or parking blocks. Vehicles must be parked within the painted lines or parked in front of a parking block properly spaced for parking.
- 2 3. Where parallel parking is required, vehicles must be parked with the right wheels to the curb.
- 3 4. Where diagonal and head-on parking are required, vehicles should be parked with the front toward the curb and the rear bumper toward the traffic lane.
- 4 5. No parking is allowed next to red curbs, red parking blocks or in red or candy-striped areas.
- 5 6. No parking is allowed on the grass, sidewalks, or in driveways or loading zones.
- 6 7. Double parking is a violation at all times.
- 7 8. If a vehicle is parked in violation, attended or unattended, the driver may be issued a citation.
- 8. All parking spaces are defined by painted lines or parking blocks. Vehicles must be parked within the painted lines or parked in front of a parking block properly spaced for parking.

- 9. Excluding those exempted by state law, holders of all types of UCA permits are required to pay when parking at parking meters.
- 10. 9. Vehicles licensed by the federal, state, county, or city government are exempt from permit requirements, but subject to compliance with other traffic and parking regulations. Police vehicles are exempt from certain traffic and parking regulations as provided in State statutes.
- 11. Persons riding bicycles must obey all rules of the road established for motor vehicles. Bicycles shall be parked in racks provided on campus. Bicycles parked in access ways, on sidewalks, in areas which may obstruct disabled access or in any other improper location will be subject to citation and impoundment. Impounded bicycles may be claimed at the University Police Department after all fines are paid.

XI. XV. Personal Responsibility for Vehicles

- 1. The person operating a vehicle displaying a UCA parking permit is responsible for all violations by that vehicle. If a permitted vehicle is loaned to another driver, its proper operation remains the permit holder's responsibility.
- 2. If a vehicle without a permit is driven on campus by a permit holder, a "Temporary Permit" must be obtained from the University Police Department. Temporary parking permits are available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Motorcycle permit holders are not eligible for temporary permits.
- 3. Parking facilities may not be used until a student decal is affixed to the vehicle or a faculty or staff faculty/staff permit is displayed on the rearview mirror of the vehicle.

XII. XVI. Towing and Impoundment of Vehicles

- 1. UCA reserves the right to tow and impound from its property any parked vehicle that does not display a current parking permit, is improperly parked in a space reserved for the disabled, is parked in a restricted zone, or has unpaid parking tickets. Vehicles will be towed if parked in such a way as to constitute a traffic or pedestrian hazard or impede the access of service or emergency vehicles. Violations which could also result in towing and possible impoundment include, but are not limited to, parking in reserved parking spaces, parking in painted candy-striped or red areas, parking in driveways, or double parking on the street or in parking lots.
- 2. UCA reserves the right to tow and impound from its property any vehicle in violation of its traffic and parking regulations until all towing fees and UCA traffic/parking violation charges have been paid.

XIII. XVII. Appeals Process

A traffic citation may be appealed within 72 hours of its issuance if the recipient believes it was issued contrary to campus traffic regulations or in error. Forms for appeals may be obtained from the University Police Department. An appeal may not be granted after a ticket has

been paid. Administrative determinations by the University of Central Arkansas may be appealed to the Conway District Court in accordance with A.C.A. 25-17-307.

XIV. XVIII. Fines for Violations

All fines must be paid within 30 days from the date of issue. Fines for traffic and parking violations which are not paid within 30 days from the date of issue of the citation for the violation(s) will be adjusted to an amount equal to twice the amount of the original fine(s). Failure to pay traffic and parking fines may result in the blocking of pre-registration, or the withholding of pay and refund checks.

All fines are payable at the University Police Department from 8:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. If the violator has their copy of the citation, payments will be accepted at the University Police Communications Center after hours in the form of a check or money order for the exact amount of the fine only.

The following are the parking and traffic violations and corresponding fines* established by the University of Central Arkansas:

1. 2.	No permit Defacing, reproducing, altering or illegal use of permit		25.00 25.00
3.	Falsifying registration information		50.00
4.	Exceeding speed limit		25.00
5.	Reckless/unsafe driving		25.00
6.	Failure to stop or yield right-of-way	25.00	
7.	Parking in a disabled space		50.00
8.	Parking at a red curb	15.00	
9.	Improper equipment		15.00
10.	Double parking/blocking		15.00
11.	Parking in the wrong area		15.00
12.	Parking in a No Parking area		15.00
13.	Parking in a reserved area		15.00
14.	Driving and/or parking on grass		10.00
15.	Driving/parking wrong direction on a one-way street		10.00
16.	Parking on the wrong side of street		10.00
17.	Overline parking		10.00
18.	Improper display of permit		10.00
19.	Overtime parking		10.00
20.	Failure to display hanging permit		10.00

^{*}Fines double if not paid within 30 days of the citation date.

All fines must be paid within 30 days from the date of issue. Fines for traffic and parking violations which are not paid within 30 days from the date of issue of the citation for the violation(s) will be adjusted to an amount equal to twice the amount of the original fine(s). Failure to pay traffic and parking fines may result in the blocking of pre-registration, or the withholding of pay and refund checks.

All fines are payable at the University Police Department from 8:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. If the violator has their copy of the citation, payments will be accepted at the University Police Dispatch Center after hours for the exact amount of the fine only. UNIVERSITY POLICE

The UCA Police Department is committed to providing quality service and protection to students, faculty, staff and visitors of the University of Central Arkansas. University Police officers are law enforcement officers of the State of Arkansas and are professionally trained and certified by the Arkansas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards and Training. The Department employs 22 full-time police officers who have full investigative and arrest authority on the campus and contiguous streets and highways pursuant to A.C.A. 25-17-305. The Department's 24-hour 9-1-1 Communications Center and the Parking and Traffic Business Office employs additional support personnel who provide public safety services to the academic community.

The University Police Department maintains and promotes respect for the individual rights and dignity of all persons and is dedicated to excellence in all of the services that are offered on a year-round basis. The University Police are trained to understand the needs of students, faculty and staff. Police officers, equipped with two-way radios, patrol the campus by vehicle, foot and bicycle. Preventative patrols are also provided by campus service officers who are student aids and provide certain security functions. Arkansas law permits University Police officers to stop individuals suspected of criminal activity and question their identity, business and destination. In addition, University Police may make arrests or issue a summons for traffic or criminal violations which are referred to the City or County Prosecutor. All members of the campus community are encouraged to cooperate fully with police personnel for the safety and convenience of everyone involved. Resistance to detention or arrest may result in a more serious charge.

The University Police Department employs the philosophy of community policing within its jurisdiction. This philosophy is based upon the concept that police officers and the campus community as a whole can work together in creative ways to solve problems and prevent crimes. The primary focus of community policing is to foster positive interactions between the police, students, and staff. Comments or suggestions are always welcome by contacting the Chief of University Police at 450-3111.

HOW TO SUMMON ASSISTANCE

The University Police Department is located on campus between State and Hughes Hall. Persons needing EMERGENCY assistance at any time may call the University Police CommCenter by dialing 8-9-1-1 9-1-1 from any campus office telephones or 9-1-1 from residence hall telephone. General assistance can be obtained by calling 450-3111. Assistance can also be summoned by pushing the call button on any blue light emergency telephone located throughout the campus. The Dispatcher instantly knows the location of the caller and will ask what type of assistance is needed. The University Police Department's lobby is open 24-hours a day. The on-duty Dispatcher is available to assist at the lobby window. A local access telephone and a library of free crime prevention, safety and health brochures are also available in the lobby.

MOTORIST ASSISTANCE PROGRAM - MAP

...a service of the UCA Police Department

Jump starting your car battery

Unlocking your car

Transportation to a local service station

The Motorist Assistance Program - MAP - is one of the services provided by the UCA Police Department. MAP is designed to provide assistance to students, faculty, staff and visitors experiencing vehicle problems while at the University.

If you need the services of MAP, call the UCA Police at 450-3111 or go to a blue light emergency telephone and push the button to talk to one of our dispatchers.

A police officer will be dispatched to your location and will be happy to assist you.

Dental Insurance Renewal - The current dental insurance plans provided through Delta Dental of Arkansas will expire on December 31, 2002. Delta has proposed a renewal of the plans with no increase in rates for the basic plan and an increase of twelve (12%) percent for the enhanced plan. There are no proposed changes in plan designs or co-pay amounts.

Based upon the renewal rates and plan structures, the UCA Fringe Benefits Committee has recommended continuation of dental insurance through Delta.

Monthly Premiums are as follows:

	Currer	nt Rates	Proposed Rates				
Basic Plan	<u>Employe</u>	ee UCA	Employe	ee UCA			
Employee Only Employee Plus One	\$ 0.00 12.02	\$12.06 12.06	No	Change			
Employee Plus Children	13.86	12.06					
Family	24.50	12.06					
	Currer	nt Rates	<u>Propo</u>	sed Rates			
Enhanced Plan	Employee 1	UCA	Employee	<u>UCA</u>			
Employee Only	\$ 0.00	\$19.38	\$ 0.00	\$22.25			
Employee Plus One	8.06	19.38	11.00	22.25			
Employee Plus Children	25.20	19.38	26.00	22.25			
Family	45.16	19.38	46.00	22.25			

The Fringe Benefits Committee has reviewed and approved this proposal.

The following resolution was unanimously adopted upon motion by Mr. Harding with a second by Mr. Hicks:

"BE IT RESOLVED: THAT THE ADMINISTRATION IS AUTHORIZED TO RENEW THE DENTAL INSURANCE CONTRACT WITH DELTA DENTAL OF ARKANSAS FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2003 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2003 AT THE RATES AND TERMS INDICATED ABOVE."

Naming of New Academic Building - The administration recently received a written recommendation that the new building that will house the Department of Writing and Speech be named to honor former president Winfred L. Thompson. In compliance with Board Policy No. 402, "Naming University Facilities," the matter was referred to the Council of Vice Presidents, which supported the recommendation. The following study committee was appointed to review the proposal:

Jack Gillean - Vice President for University Relations; H. B. Hardy, Jr. - Alumnus and retired faculty/administrator; Serena Jeffery - President of the Student Government Association; Tom Courtway - Conway attorney; Pattie Phelps - Professor, College of Education.

After a thorough review, the study committee voted to support the recommendation.

The various reviewing groups all agreed that naming the new academic building in honor of Dr. Thompson was appropriate for several reasons. First, the location and beauty of the new building make it a fitting tribute to Dr. Thompson's substantial efforts to make UCA "the most beautiful public university in Arkansas." Also, Dr. Thompson was instrumental in the establishment of a writing program that later became the Department of Writing and Speech. His efforts in this regard were at the front of a national trend to establish writing programs as separate academic departments. Finally, all former presidents of the university have buildings or facilities named in their honor. In most cases, this honor was bestowed while each was serving his term as president.

The following resolution was unanimously adopted upon motion by Mr. Hicks with a second by Mr. Womack:

"BE IT RESOLVED: THAT THE NEW ACADEMIC BUILDING THAT HOUSES THE DEPARTMENT OF WRITING AND SPEECH BE DESIGNATED AS WINFRED L. THOMPSON HALL."

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Executive session, for the purpose of considering and discussing personnel matters, was unanimously declared upon motion by Mr. Harding with a second by Mr. Hicks.

OPEN SESSION

Open session was declared by Mr. Sims.

The following resolution was unanimously adopted upon motion by Dr. Stanton with a second by Mr. Hicks:

"BE IT RESOLVED: THAT THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES APPROVES THE FOLLOWING ADJUSTMENTS, APPOINTMENTS, REAPPOINTMENTS, LEAVE WITHOUT PAY, RESIGNATIONS, AND RETIREMENT, PROVIDED HOWEVER, THAT THE ADMINISTRATION IS AUTHORIZED TO MAKE CORRECTIONS AND CHANGES OF A CLERICAL NATURE."

(A copy of the personnel list is on file in the president's office.)

Mr. Hicks made the following motion:

In an effort to bring the presidential search process to an expeditious resolution, the

Board requests that an interview process be established by the search committee as soon as possible and not to exceed 45 days with the following applicants:

Dr. Kendall A. Blanchard

Dr. Lloyd Chestnut

Dr. Phillip Creighton

Dr. Albert Etheridge

Dr. Michael Gallagher

Mr. Lu Hardin

Dr. Perry Moore

Dr. Duane Stucky

The interviews will be conducted by the Board. The goal of the Board is to narrow the list to 2-3 candidates who will be brought to the campus to meet with members of the faculty, staff, students, and community at the beginning of the fall term. This action in no way closes the search. The search committee will continue to receive and review applications until the position is filled, and will forward any applications deemed appropriate to the Board for its consideration.

The motion was seconded by Mr. Erstine and passed unanimously.

Mr. Sims stated that the search committee has done an excellent job of putting together a list of well-qualified prospective candidates. Mr. Sims further stated that the Board has shortened the time frame for the selection of a new president because it felt it was important to have someone in place early in the school year. Mr. Sims stated that it is extremely critical to have a new president who will be a strong advocate for the university before the opening of the next legislative session.

ADJOURNMENT

There being	no	further	business	to	come	before	the	Board,	the	meeting	was	adjourned
upon motion by Mr. Harding with a second by Mr. Hicks.												

Mr. Randy Sims, Chair
Mr Kallay Erstina Sacratary
Mr. Kelley Erstine, Secretary